Earth Negotiat

ions Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 4 No. 113

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11ISD)

Wednesday, 8 October 1997

HIGHLIGHTS OF CCD COP-1
TUESDAY, 7 OCTOBER 1997

Delegatesto COP-1 met in Plenary to hear statementsfrom
Ministers, in the Committee of the Whole (COW) to consider draft
decisions, and ininformal consultationsto discussthe administra-
tive arrangementsfor the Global Mechanism.

PLENARY

Delegates heard thirty-four statements during the High-Level
Segment. Twenty-two Ministers, 5 Deputy-Ministersand 7 other
officials spoke.

CCD AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT: The G-77
and CHINA said the CCD isthefirst international convention to
address environmental destruction and poverty inrural areas. The
EU and NIGER stressed the role of the CCD in attaining food secu-
rity. NIGER added that desertificationisaglobal challenge
requiring North-South and South-South cooperation and the devel-
opment of synergies between the other Rio Conventions. MAURI-
TANIA stressed the equality of the CCD with the conventionson
biological diversity, climate change and the Montreal Protocol.
FRANCE said the UNGA SS meeting showed that the Rio process
had run out of steam and hoped the CCD's entry into force will
demonstrate adesire to compensate for that.

RESOURCE AND TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: ITALY
called for measures supporting the North-South transfer of tech-
nology, thejoint implementation of commitments and the adequate
provision of financial resources. CHINA noted the importance of
international cooperation, the creation of an internal and external
enabling environment, South-South cooperation and science and
technology. IRAN, COTE d'lVOIRE, JORDAN and ALGERIA
stressed the need for technical and financial support. GHANA said
Africastill isin an emergency situation although the period for
urgent measures has expired. TURKEY offered to shareits exper-
tiseand said it isopen to technology transfer. MONGOL I A said
developed countries must meet their financial commitments.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE: TheEU isthelargest donor,
having committed more than US$2.2 million to desertification
programmes. LUXEMBOURG has contributed US$1 millionto a
World Bank trust fund to combat desertification. The UK high-
lighted its new devel opment philosophy and activities that demon-
strate its commitment to the CCD, including debt cancellation and
provision of over GBP 21 million for new anti-desertification activ-
ities. FRANCE will mobilize additional fundsfor desertification
activities. The NETHERLANDS said the "lead donor" ideacan
give meaning to partnershipsand noted that it is serving in that

capacity in BurkinaFaso. GERMANY isimplementing several
hundred desertification projectsin all regions. SPAIN plansto
contributeto the CST by serving asaleader for specific
programmes, such asthe devel opment of indicators. It will also
make new contributionstowardsthe CCD for implementationin
Latin America.

CCD RATIFICATION: All EU member States haveratified
the CCD and the Commission will ratify it in afew weeks.
FRANCE appeal ed to major devel oped countrieswho have not yet
ratified the CCD. The US said the Senate'sfailureto ratify does not
reflect alack of commitment to the CCD, and said it provided
US$33.5 million for CCD-relevant activities. RUSSIA will
continue effortsto ratify the CCD, but stressed the need for afifth
CCD annex for Central and Eastern European States and called for
negotiationsto beginimmediately.

GLOBAL MECHANISM: TheG-77 and CHINA waspleased
that the Global Mechanism (GM) will haveits own resources.
MAURITANIA supported aGM that offersan effectivetool to
provideresourcesfor field programmes. MADAGASCAR said the
GM isanecessary and appropriatetool to increasefinancial flows
for desertification. ITALY said the GM, housed at IFAD in Rome,
isthe appropriate mechanism to identify innovative forms of
financing. BENIN cited the difficultiesin designating the GM and
establishing the Committee on the Review of the Implentation of
the Convention asindicators of the need to make greater efforts at
participation and partnership, which haswaned since Rio.

PARTICIPATION: Many speakers emphasized the CCD's
bottom-up approach and need to involve all relevant actors.
SWEDEN said the CCD requirestheinvolvement of NGOsand is
for the benefit of farmers and pastoralists, most of whom are
women. GHANA stressed that rural people have valuable knowl-
edgeto contribute to the participatory processdesignedinthe CCD.
BURKINA FASO said the CCD isan example of anew moral ethic
ininternational cooperation that includestheinnovative principles
of participation and partnership.

IMPLEMENTATION: Most speakers noted national and
international effortsto combat desertification. For example,
SYRIA isreducing the encroachment of marginal areasthrough a
95,000 hectares " Green Belt" project. MOROCCO has an informa-
tion programme to promote awareness and a strategy for livestock
grazing zones. CHAD highlighted an agreement between NGOs
and the Ministry of Water on information and awarenessraising.
NEPAL hasgiven priority to poverty elimination and sustainable
development. BRAZIL referred toitsregional plan of action with
other Latin American countries. BURKINA FASO sponsored a

Thisissueof theEarth Negotiations Bulletin© <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Elisabeth Corell <elico@tema.liu.se>, Wagaki Mwangi <wagaki @iconnect.co.ke>
Tiffany Prather, J.D. <tprather@iisd.org> and Lynn Wagner <lynn@iisd.org>. The Editor is PamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isLangston
James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.The sustaining donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA) and the United States of America (through USAID). General support for the Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International
Development (DI D) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsof Denmark, the European Community (DG-X1), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature
Conservation and Nuclear Safety, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the
Environment and UNDP. Specific funding for coverage of the CCD is provided by German Technical Cooperation (GTZ) and FAQ. Funding for the French version has
been provided by ACCT/IEPF, with support from the French Ministry of Cooperation and the Québec Ministry of the Environment and Wildlife. The Bulletin can be
contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-
204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD
and other funders. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publicationsonly and with appropriate academic citation. For permission
to usethismaterial in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can befound onthe
LinkagesWWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satelliteimage was taken on 1997/08/24 23:06:49 UTC from 100000 km above Montreal, Copyright © 1997
TheLiving Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For further information on waysto access, support or contact the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Wednesday, 8 October 1997

[Earth Negotiations Bulletin
" 'A Reporiing Service for Exvironment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 4 No. 113 Page 2

national forumin July 1997 to exchange views onimplementing the
CCD. MADAGASCAR described itsthree-phase environmental
action plan. ICELAND said participants at arecent meeting on
rangel ands agreed the evolution of the CCD could be enhanced
through broad-based scientific input and the CST could benefit
from the experience of the FCCC's Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change. The PAKISTANI government is paying attention
to thefactorsthat contribute to desertification, including deforesta-
tion, mismanagement and salinization. UGANDA has prepared a
draft National Action Programme (NAP) and aproject proposal for
itsimplementation. MONGOLIA has enacted anumber of laws
concerning land use and management practices.

ITALY outlined the southern European countries effortsto
implement common guidelines and programmesin accordance
with Annex 1V of the CCD. NIGER noted the strong cooperative
arrangements between Africaand Asiain combating desertification
and highlighted the conclusions of the second Asia-AfricaForum.
CHINA noted the Ministerial Beijing Declaration. IRAN offered to
host aregional level network for some of the thematic issuesidenti-
fied at the Beijing meeting. MOROCCO said the OSS has
succeeded in devel oping aframework for cooperation between
North and South. LIBY A stressed the need for coordination of
international effortsto mobilize scientific and technical resources
to combat poverty and hunger. TUNISIA has hosted meetings of
African representativesto coordinate efforts.

GERMANY asked if implementation has been limited to work-
shops. He stressed the need to make poverty reduction the focus of
cooperation.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

The COW met for 90 minutesto consider several, mainly proce-
dural, draft decisions. COW Chair El-Ghaouth noted that decisions
left pending at COP-1 would haveto wait until COP-2, which could
affect countries' programmes of work.

EXPRESSIONS OF GRATITUDE TO ITALY AND THE
FAO: The COW adopted, by acclamation, decisions | CCD/
COP(1)/L.7and L.6.

DATE AND VENUE OF COP-2: The COW adopted the draft
outline of decision ICCD/COP(1)/L .2, without naming the date or
host country for COP-2. Egypt, Senegal and the African Group
expect to reach agreement by Wednesday morning, 8 October. El-
Ghaouth said the date al so would depend on the associated UN
Organization.

PHYSICAL LOCATION OF THE PERMANENT SECRE-
TARIAT: Draft decision ICCD/COP(1)/L .4 accepts the offer of
Germany to host the Secretariat in Bonn and highlightsfollow-up
stepsfor the Executive Secretary. The EU proposed text stating that
the Executive Secretary acts"for and on behalf of the UN Organiza-
tion." The EU aso preferred relocation closeto but prior to 1
January 1999, and not after that date. The Chair noted that rel oca-
tion is dependent on the readiness of the host government and
subject to receipt by the Secretariat of two contractsfrom the UN
Organization. He said aletter of appreciation to Switzerland would
also be needed. The EU said it needed to consult on the text, which
was adopted ad referendum.

PROGRAMME OF WORK OF THE COP: Ondecision
ICCD/COP(1)/L.5, the EU asked whether the programme and
budget decision would befor one or two years. EI-Ghaouth said itis
astanding item on the COP agenda and el aborated using the prece-
dent of the FCCC. The EU revised theintroductionsto subpara-
graphs 3 (a) and (b). The decision was adopted ad referendum.

INTERIM ARRANGEMENTS: Decision ICCD/COP(1)/L.3
stipulates anumber of tasksfor the UN Secretary-General,
including the appointment of the Head of the Secretariat. The EU
said payment for conference services should be discussed under
Programme and Budget because budgetary issues haveto be
presented as a package. The position and title were left pending.

SUPPLEMENTARY FUND AND SPECIAL FUND: The
decision (ICCD/COP(1)/L.10) mandates the establishment of two
Fundsfor various Convention purposes. PANAMA suggested
revising text so as not to specify the number of NGOsto be
supported. New text was added to subparagraph 2(b) to ensure
fundsare used for "relevant articles of the regional implementation
annexes."

RELATIONS WITH THE GLOBAL ENVIRONMENT
FACILITY: Thedecision (ICCD/COP(1)/L.12) welcomesthe
determination by the GEF Council to finance land degradation
activitiesand invitesit to report to the COP on mattersrelating to
theissue. Adoption of the decision was deferred to allow the EU to
consult.

DRAFT DECISION ON BEHALF OF THE LATIN
AMERICAN AND CARIBBEAN COUNTRIES: Thedraft deci-
sion makesfour proposals, including the adoption of agreements
made by the Region's Parties at their meetings and requeststhe
Executive Secretary to provide the support required for theregional
action programme and coordinating mechanism. Discussions
centred around the possibility of other regions submitting similar
decisionsand the need for clarity about the decisionsthe Parties
would be making. The matter was deferred to allow for EU consul-
tations.

EXTRABUDGETARY FUNDS: Thedecision (ICCD/
COP(1)/L.11) dealswith extrabudgetary fundsfor the Secretariat
for 1998. At the EU'srequest, the decision was deferred to enable a
small group to negotiate the decision.

ESTIMATES FOR THE OPERATING EXPENSES OF
THE GM: Decision ICCD/COP(1)/L .13 notes that the expenses of
the GM in 1999 are missing in the proposed budget and programme
(ICCD/COP(1)/5) and requests the Executive Secretary to submit
budget estimatesto COP-2. The decision was deferred pending
conclusion of on-going informal consultations onthe GM.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Some agreement was reached in theinformal discussionson the
Global Mechanism on Tuesday afternoon, 7 October. The agreed
text in the two decisionsrefersto: theimportance of the collabora-
tion between the three organizations, IFAD, UNDP and the World
Bank; thetransitory measuresto ensure the GM startsfunctioning
as soon as possible; and the rel ationship between the COP and the
GM, wherethe Secretariat ismandated to negotiate aMemorandum
of Understanding with the hosting organizations. Delegates
observed that what remainsisthe choice of theinstitution to house
the Mechanism, either IFAD or UNDP. Apparently, thedilemmais
the selection procedure, by vote or by consensus. Many delegates
felt thiswas an important matter and stressed the need to not post-
pone the decision until COP-2. Look for the two draft decisionson
the GM.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
PLENARY:: Thirty-eight statements are expected during
morning and afternoon meetings of the High-Level Segment.
COW: The COW isexpected to meet at 10:00 am to consider
the pending draft decisions.



